TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY
LEGAL COMMITTEE

TRPA Offices October 22, 2025
Zoom
Meeting Minutes

CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
Chair Williamson called the meeting to order at 8:32 a.m. on October 22, 2025.

Members present: Ms. Aldean, Ms. Faustinos, Mr. Kieckhefer, Ms. Leumer and Ms.
Williamson.

Members absent: None

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

Ellie Waller addressed the Legal Committee regarding fines, highlighting concerns about
inequities in how different-sized projects are treated—particularly comparing single-family
homes to large development projects. She reviewed historical records from 1997 to 2025,
noting significant fines, including $20K for unauthorized grading in 1997, $215K in 1999 for
unauthorized shoreline construction, $250K for backshore disturbances, and other examples
of unauthorized excavation or tree-related violations. She emphasized that past press
releases promoting environmental stewardship do not excuse past mistakes and urged the
committee to have a robust discussion about the fairness and consistency of fines going
forward.

John Gurner, a neighbor of the Barton project, addressed the Legal Committee about
ongoing issues caused by the project. He reported sediment flooding from the property, a
fence improperly placed on a planned bike path, and a sediment catchment pond that was
not removed as required. He criticized TRPA for failing to enforce site inspections, allowing
the developer to create safety hazards and property damage, including cracks on the bike
path. Mr. Gurner emphasized that the hospital project has repeatedly violated rules without
accountability, and he challenged the notion that it should receive leniency due to its public
benefit. He also described aggressive tactics by the developer toward neighbors and
disputed claims of “run-on” flooding from Highway 50. Mr. Gurner called for TRPA to take
control, hold the developer accountable, and ensure the project is responsibly managed,
suggesting that the proposed $50,000 fine is insufficient compared to the damages and
costs incurred.

John Grigsby, a neighbor near the proposed hospital project, addressed the Legal
Committee regarding the ineffectiveness of fines in ensuring compliance with Best
Management Practices (BMPs). He emphasized that the hospital has not completed
required BMPs signed off on June 11, 2024, including necessary grading and waddle
installation, and that the proposed $50,000 fine is less costly than actually complying.
Grigsby criticized the developer for acting in bad faith, ignoring TRPA rules, and attempting
to blame neighborhood vandalism without evidence. He warned that such insufficient fines
set a dangerous precedent, undermining TRPA enforcement and potentially encouraging
future large projects to ignore environmental requirements, treating fines as a mere cost of
doing business rather than a deterrent.



LEGAL COMMITTEE
October 22, 2025

Alan Miller addressed the committee in support of the previous speakers, emphasizing that
fines must act as a true deterrent and ensure violators do not benefit from noncompliance.
He criticized the $50,000 fine proposed for Barton as far too low, calling it a “slap on the
hand,” and argued it fails to account for the magnitude of sediment discharges, violations,
and staff efforts to enforce compliance. Miller highlighted that the violator is acting in bad
faith, not following permit requirements, and that the enforcement approach
underestimates both the severity of the violations and the recalcitrance of the violator. He
urged the committee to impose a substantially higher fine to send a strong, effective
message.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

TRPA General Counsel Graham St. Michel stated that there were no changes to the agenda.

Chair Williamson deemed the agenda approved as posted.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Ms. Aldean made a motion to approve the September 24, 2025 Legal Committee meeting
minutes as presented.

Motion carried by voice vote.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE RECOMMENDATION FOR APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION OF
ENFORCEMENT ACTION: BARTON HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, FAILURE OF REQUIRED BMPS
RESULTING IN DISCHARGE OF SEDIMENT, 168 US HIGHWAY 50, STATELINE, NV ASSESSOR
PARCEL NUMBER (APN) 1318-22-002-114, 1318-22-002-115, 1318-22-002-116, AND 1318-
22-002-117, TRPA FILE NO. ERSP2024-0572

Steve Sweet, TRPA’s Code Compliance Program Manager, introduced the enforcement
action involving Barton Healthcare System and the former Lakeside property located at 168
Highway 50, Stateline, Nevada. He explained that the violation centers on Barton’s failure to
maintain adequate temporary Best Management Practices (BMPs) during construction,
which resulted in repeated sediment discharges from the site into the surrounding drainage
system.

Mr. Sweet provided a detailed timeline and background: TRPA approved a grading plan for
Barton on June 11, 2024, and the property was being actively managed as a construction
site following the demolition of the previous building. Under TRPA Code of Ordinances,
construction sites are required to be stabilized, winterized, and maintain erosion control
BMPs to prevent discharges into the waters of the Lake Tahoe Basin.

TRPA staff conducted inspections of the Barton site during the winter, specifically on
September 24, 2024, and November 14, 2024, and raised concerns regarding the adequacy
of the BMPs. Staff requested that Barton submit an augmented BMP plan to better manage
stormwater and prevent runoff, but Barton initially resisted, maintaining that the existing
BMPs were sufficient.


https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Legal-Committee-No-4-and-Consent-Calendar-No-4-Barton-Settlement-PPT.pdf
https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Legal-Committee-No-4-and-Consent-Calendar-No-4-Barton-Settlement-PPT.pdf
https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Legal-Committee-No-4-and-Consent-Calendar-No-4-Barton-Settlement-PPT.pdf
https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Legal-Committee-No-4-and-Consent-Calendar-No-4-Barton-Settlement-PPT.pdf
https://www.trpa.gov/wp-content/uploads/Legal-Committee-No-4-and-Consent-Calendar-No-4-Barton-Settlement-PPT.pdf

LEGAL COMMITTEE

October 22, 2025
Mr. Sweet documented the ongoing issues with multiple photographs showing sediment
leaving the property and entering the drainage infrastructure along Laura Drive, taken
during inspections on December 24, 2024, January 7, 2025, and January 9, 2025. Despite a
January 15, 2025 meeting during which Barton committed to installing additional BMPs
within ten days, the new BMP plan was not submitted until January 28, which did not allow
sufficient time to prevent further runoff events on January 31 and February 1, 2025. TRPA
then issued a cease-and-desist letter on February 1, 2025, after observing continued
discharges.

Mr. Sweet reviewed the specific code violations, all tied to failure to implement and
maintain BMPs, resulting in off-site discharges. He noted that Barton has since taken
responsibility for these unauthorized activities and agreed to a settlement. The settlement
includes implementing the approved temporary BMP plan and paying a $50,000 penalty to
Douglas County. Sweet highlighted that the penalty funds are intended to support
operations and maintenance of stormwater management along Laura Drive and surrounding
areas, making it a community-benefiting resolution.

Finally, Mr. Sweet compared the Barton violations to past, similar TRPA enforcement
actions. While no prior case is identical, the comparison demonstrates that the Barton
settlement is consistent with previous penalties for violations of comparable scale and
scope, including issues related to grading, tree removal, and sediment discharges. He
emphasized that the action both addresses remediation of the Barton site and ensures
consistency and fairness in TRPA’s enforcement approach.

Lew Feldman, representing Barton Health, addressed the Legal Committee and expressed
full support for the proposed settlement regarding the BMP violations. He acknowledged
that violations occurred but emphasized that Barton has been proactive in addressing the
issues.

Mr. Feldman noted that the originally approved BMP plan was augmented and that the
BMPs installed exceeded $1 million in value. Following the violations, Barton decided to
change consultants for the BMP plan, engaging NCE to develop a revised plan. This new
plan, which was displayed earlier by Steve Sweet, was approved by TRPA and has been fully
implemented at an additional cost of $700,000.

Mr. Feldman stressed that Barton has consistently sought to implement approved BMPs,
and the previous BMP failures were addressed through augmentation and the development
of an entirely new, fully constructed plan. He concluded by expressing willingness to answer
any questions from the committee.

TRPA General Counsel Graham St. Michel addressed the Legal Committee, largely in
response to public comments on the Barton Healthcare settlement. He began by
acknowledging the community’s strong engagement and vigilance in protecting Lake Tahoe,
noting that public scrutiny helps TRPA remain focused on environmental protection.

He then clarified the legal framework under which TRPA operates. Unlike some regulatory
agencies, TRPA cannot unilaterally impose civil penalties; its authority is limited to $5,000
per day per violation, and enforcement often requires negotiation or litigation. Mr. St.
Michel emphasized that settlements are necessarily compromises, balancing the strength of
TRPA’s legal case, disputed facts, corrective actions already taken, and the practical benefits
of immediate environmental improvements versus prolonged litigation.



LEGAL COMMITTEE

October 22, 2025
Regarding the Barton settlement specifically, he explained that there were genuine disputes
over the causes and extent of runoff and the adequacy of the original BMP plan, which
would have been vigorously contested in court. The $50,000 settlement, he said, is
consistent with TRPA's past settlements for comparable violations and includes a tangible
on-the-ground benefit: funding for stormwater improvements in the affected watershed.

Mr. St. Michel also addressed concerns about the deterrent effect and the calculation of the
penalty. He noted that Barton has taken the matter seriously, stabilizing the site and re-
engineering BMPs to a higher standard. He cautioned against publicly detailing the
methodology for calculating penalties, as this could undermine future enforcement
authority; assessments of violations are considered privileged deliberations.

Finally, he emphasized that TRPA’s actions—including multiple inspections, weekend site
visits, and issuance of a cease and desist order—demonstrate accountability and proactive
enforcement, countering any perception of leniency or favoritism, even when the violator is
a hospital. He concluded that the settlement represents a strong, defensible, and
proportionate resolution.

Committee Questions & Comments

Ms. Shelly Aldean asked why the security fence at the Barton property had originally been
placed in the public right-of-way, noting that it has since been moved and suggesting that
Lou Feldman might be the appropriate person to answer.

Lew Feldman explained that the security fence is now positioned behind the BMPs, and
moving it further off the trail would create a gap in the BMP coverage. He stated that the
current placement is the most effective for completing the BMPs around the site.

Ms. Aldean asked if there was an encroachment permit required from Douglas County. Mr.
Feldman confirmed that Barton had the required encroachment permit. Ms. Aldean
followed up with a question about the undermining of the constructed pathway? Lew
Feldman stated that Jason Drew from Nichols Consulting Engineers inspected the trail and
found no erosion or damage caused by the BMPs. He noted that any wear on the trail is due
to its age—over 10 years old—rather than the BMPs.

Ms. Aldean asked Steve Sweet about Douglas County’s involvement in inspecting the site,
questioning whether TRPA should bear sole responsibility for enforcing commitments to the
county and whether engagement with Douglas County should be increased.

Lew Feldman added that Barton voluntarily coordinated with Douglas County to clean all the
storm drains along Laura Drive and Kale Drive, even though it was not required,
demonstrating their commitment to doing the right thing, and that this work was done at
Barton's expense.

Ms. Aldean asked if there would be enhanced supervision by Barton at this site going into
the winter months to ensure that this doesn't reoccur.

Lew Feldman stated that Jason Drew from NCE, present in the room, will continue
monitoring the BMPs on behalf of Barton, and that Barton is prepared to take any necessary
actions to reinforce them. He also noted that TRPA staff, like Steve Sweet, are readily



LEGAL COMMITTEE
October 22, 2025
accessible for coordination.

TRPA Executive Director Julie Regan emphasized that TRPA has been in close
communication with Douglas County, including a meeting with their executive leadership
just the day before, to ensure collaboration. She clarified that while the encroachment
permit falls under the county’s authority, TRPA’s focus is on overseeing BMP compliance.

Ms. Aldean asked Steve Sweet whether runoff from US 50, 4-H Road, and Kahle Drive
contributed to the magnitude of the runoff event.

Steve Sweet responded that he observed significant water runoff from Highway 50 onto the
site during large storm events. Previously, water would enter the Lakeside area and go into
storm drains, but with the site now demolished, the water ran directly onto the property.
He noted that as part of the BMP plan, curbs were installed at the entrances to redirect
water back to the highway storm drains.

Mr. Sweet explained that the storm drains from Highway 50, Kahle Drive, Laura Drive, and
surrounding areas all flow into two stormwater detention basins—one in the meadow and
one near the apartment complex. These basins are the ones being addressed and funded as
part of the settlement agreement.

Belinda Faustinos expressed that most of her questions were already addressed,
commended staff for diligent monitoring, and voiced concern about Barton's slow response
in addressing the violations, noting it may negatively affect community perception. She
expressed hope for better cooperation moving forward.

Alex Leumer expressed agreement with Belinda Faustinos’ comments and appreciation for
the questions that had already been raised.

Committee Chair Williamson thanked the Legal Committee and participants for the robust
discussion, stated that the item will remain on the consent calendar as usual, and
emphasized that the committee’s vetting of issues should give the board confidence, so the
discussion may not need to be repeated at the board level unless desired.

Ms. Aldean expressed hope that Barton’s contracted supervisor will effectively oversee BMP
compliance, but suggested that if not, a third-party independent supervisor might be
needed. She also noted that TRPA staff should not bear sole responsibility for supervision
and expressed hope this will be the last discussion about Barton failing to maintain BMPs.

Ms. Aldean made a motion to recommend approval of the Settlement Agreement as shown
in Attachment A.

Ayes: Ms. Aldean, Ms. Faustinos, Mr. Kieckhefer, Ms. Leumer and Ms. Williamson.
Nays: None.

Motion carried.



LEGAL COMMITTEE
October 22, 2025
V. CLOSED SESSION WITH COUNSEL TO DISCUSS EXISTING LITIGATION (EISENSTECKEN V. TRPA)
AND POTENTIAL INITIATION OF LITIGATION

The Legal Committee was in closed session for approximately 40 minutes.

VI. POTENTIAL DIRECTION REGARDING AGENDA ITEM NO. 5

Graham St. Michel reported that the committee held a closed session to discuss
the Eisenstecken v. TRPA case and another potential litigation matter, and that the
committee provided direction on settlement discussions for both cases.

VII. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS
None.

VIII. PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS
None.

VIII. ADJOURNMENT

Ms. Aldean moved to adjourn.

Meeting adjourned at 9:47 a.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

(sl

Katherine Huston
Paralegal

The above meeting was recorded in its entirety. Anyone wishing to listen to the recording may find
it at https://www.trpa.gov/meeting-materials/. In addition, written documents submitted at
the meeting are available for review. If you require assistance locating this information,
please contact the TRPA at (775) 588-4547 or virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.gov.



https://www.trpa.gov/meeting-materials/
mailto:virtualmeetinghelp@trpa.gov

